
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Licensing 
Committee 

 
 
 

Councillor I D Armitt (Chairman) 
Councillor J Burrell (Vice-Chairman) 

 

Councillor D J Baker Councillor E J Lampkin 
Councillor A Bardoe Councillor Mrs A Muckle 
Councillor R Bryant Councillor B E Read 
Councillor P Cutler Councillor C J Shippam 
Councillor D A Hammock Councillor R J Wells 
Councillor D E Hunnisett Councillor Mrs N C Wightman 
Councillor P Kelly  
  

 
 
 
 

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on 

 
Monday 14 July 2014 

 
at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 
 



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE  
AGENDA 

 

Monday 14 July 2014 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or 
Managing Director.  
 

 

3. Confirmation of Minutes of the meeting held on 24 March 2014 
(Pages 1 - 6) 

 

4. Urgent Items   

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are any 
urgent items and their position on the agenda.  
 

 

5. Review of Minimum 21 Years of Age Criteria and Extension of 
the 12 Months Driving Licence Requirement to 36 Months - 
Consultation Response (Pages 7 - 62) 

 

  To consider the responses to the consultation and other matters 
raised by consultees.  
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Licensing Committee held on Tuesday 25 March 
2014. 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor I D Armitt JP (Chairman) 
Councillor J Burrell (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor A Bardoe 
Councillor D A Hammock 
Councillor D E Hunnisett 
Councillor E J Lampkin 
Councillor Mrs A Muckle 
Councillor Mrs N C Wightman 
 

 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor D J Baker 
Councillor R Bryant 
Councillor P Cutler 
Councillor P Kelly 
Councillor B E Read 
Councillor C J Shippam 
Councillor R J Wells 
 

 Dartford Borough Council Officers:- 
 

 Marie Kelly-Stone – Head of Legal Services 
 Joanne Philpott – Senior Licensing Officer 
 Gloria Knight – Licensing Officer (Vehicles) 
 David Hook – Member Services Officer 
  

 
 

12. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors D J Baker, R 
Bryant, P Cutler, P Kelly, B E Read, C J Shippam and R J Wells. 
 

13. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Hammock confirmed for the record, that he continued to hold a 
personal Licence [Alcohol] and was a life member of a Trade Association. 
 

14. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES HELD ON 28 NOVEMBER 2013  
 
  RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the Licensing Committee meeting held on 28 November 
2013 be confirmed as an accurate record. 
 

15. URGENT ITEMS  
 
The Chairman confirmed that there were no urgent items for consideration. 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



 

 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

 
16. HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARE TARIFF 2014  

 
The report asked Members to note the Hackney Carriage Fare Tariff 2014 as 
set-out in Appendix A. 
 
Following a ballot of Hackney Carriage Drivers in December 2013, Cabinet 
agreed on 6 March 2014 an increase of 40p to the Tariff across the mileage, 
with future tariff increases based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) as 
published annually each October.  
 
Licensing Officers confirmed the following points in response to Member’s 
questions: 
 

• Drivers were required to have their meters re-calibrated annually as a 
condition of their licence; 

• Drivers did not need to pass on the tariff increases to passengers 
however; they could elect to offer a discount on the metered fare at the 
end of each journey. 

 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
 

1. That the Committee notes the Hackney Carriage Fare Tariff for April 
2014 with a 40 pence increase across the mileage as agreed by 
Cabinet on 6 March 2014 and set out in Appendix A to the report; 
 

2. That the Committee notes that future tariff increases will be based on 
the Consumer Price Index (CPI) as published annually in October, to 
take effect from 1 April 2015 and annually thereafter. 

 
17. LOCALLY SET FEES CONSULTATION  

 
The Chairman confirmed that all Members had received the ‘to-follow’ report 
for Item 6 – Locally Set Fees Consultation – not included in the original 
agenda papers. 
 
The report asked the Committee to recommend to Cabinet for endorsement, 
the Licensing Authority’s response to the Home Office’s Locally Set Fee 
Consultation exercise [Appendix A] as set out in Appendix B to the report. 
 
The Senior Licensing Officer advised Members that the current Licensing fees 
were set in 2005 on a national basis. The Home Office consultation as set out 
at Appendix A; sought the views of local authorities to move from a centrally-
set to a locally-set fees regime, under the provisions of the Licensing Act 
2003. The SLO emphasised two key points in the Home Office proposals 
aimed at reassuring fee payers: 
 

• Caps (or highest permitted fee level) would be set by the Government 
for each fee category; 

Agenda Item 3 Page 2



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 25 MARCH 2014 
 
 

3 

• Agreement in due course for a Single National Payment Date for 
annual fees for premises licences and club premises certificates. This 
would assist multiple licence holders in particular who, under the 
current arrangements, pay annual fees on the anniversary of the date 
each licence was issued. 

 
The Licensing Authority’s response to the consultation is contained at pages 
55 – 64 of the agenda document. 
 
The Chairman expressed only one slight reservation over the Officer 
comments in regard to Question 22 [agenda page 61]. He asked that this be 
re-worded and the term ‘usually’ excluded from the final response, to avoid 
any public doubt or confusion.  
 
The SLO acknowledged this point. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 
 

1. That the Committee recommends to Cabinet for endorsement, the 
Licensing Authority’s response to the Locally Set Fee Consultation, as 
set out at Appendix B to the report, subject to the re-wording of 
Officer’s comments in response to Question 22 [as detailed above].  

   
 

18. REVIEW OF DRAFT HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE 
LICENSING POLICY & CONSULTATION PROCESS  
 
 
The report asked the Committee to consider the response received from the 
Trade (Appendix A) to the draft Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Policy (the Policy) as set out at Appendix B and to adopt the Policy.  
 
The Head of Legal Services advised Members that the draft Policy was a 
comprehensive document, with extensive updates as detailed in the ‘tracked’ 
version of Appendix B to ensure fitness for purpose and compliance with 
legislation. The majority of the Trades’ comments had been addressed. The 
Trades continuing concerns with the proposed Penalty Points Scheme 
(Appendix M) and the Council’s response were contained in the tabled 
‘bundle’ of correspondence presented to Members that evening. 
 
Initial Member discussion of the Policy focussed on the minimum twelve (12) 
month driving qualification period for drivers applying for Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Vehicle licences as set out in the draft Policy paragraph 
15.4.1 [agenda page 143].  
 
Some Members expressed concern that holding a standard GB licence for 
only 12 months prior to applying for a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire 
Vehicle licence was insufficient. They noted in this respect that other Kent 

Agenda Item 3Page 3



 

 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

licensing authorities and the Metropolitan authority, required drivers to have a 
minimum of 36 months driving experience before applying for a Hackney 
Carriage or Private Hire Vehicle licence and proposed that the Council also 
adopt a 36 month minimum criteria and review the minimum age requirement 
of 21 years [paragraph 24.1.1 of the draft Policy (agenda pages 149/50)]. 
 
The Senior Licensing Officer advised that raising the minimum driving licence 
requirement to 36 months could disadvantage older applicants seeking to re-
train as Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Vehicle licence holders. There was 
also the question of compatibility with EU legislation and the need to consider 
linkage to the minimum age requirement.  
 
The Head of Legal Services confirmed that the specific changes being 
proposed by Members would constitute a Substantial Amendment(s) to the 
draft Policy, requiring a further period of consultation with the Trade. The SLO 
advised that some 8 – 12 weeks would be required for further consultation 
with the Trades. Members had no concerns with the remainder of the draft 
Policy as set out in Appendix B. 
 
The Chairman sought a more detailed explanation of requirement HC12 
regarding the suitability of Hackney Carriage Vehicles, as set out in Appendix 
A – ‘Vehicle Age & Other Specifications’ [agenda page 161]. 
 
The SLO advised that the requirements set out in HC12 reflected the advice 
given by the relevant Department for Transport body – VOSA [Vehicle 
Operator Services Agency]. M1 or M1 low volume certificates were issued to 
Hackney Carriages vehicles pre-registration, based on Agency testing of 
prototype model engines; subsequent conversions to the cabs of individual 
vehicles was covered by the issue of a Basic IVA [Individual Approval 
Scheme] certificate on registration. 
 
In further discussion, Members agreed Recommendations 2.3 to 2.5 as set 
out in paragraphs 3.5.2 to 3.5.4 of the report respectively to; dispense with the 
Code of Good Conduct, accept the Use of Proxies and adopt the definitions 
for Substantial and Non-Substantial Amendments. 
 
Members then focussed on the Penalty Points Scheme [the Scheme] as set 
out in Appendix M and summarised in paragraph 3.5.1 of the report, together 
with Recommendation 2.2 (a) (b) and (c). 
 
The Chairman clarified for Members that under the proposed Scheme, the 
Council as Licensing Authority, would only be imposing penalty points for 
differing levels of offence on a ‘consequential risk’ basis [risk Levels 1-4]. The 
Chairman emphasised that there were no financial penalties (fines) 
associated with the Scheme. He proposed therefore with Member’s 
agreement; that any reference to the monetary standard scale level of fine (to 
determine a scale of penalty points) as set out in paragraph 5.1 of Appendix 
M [agenda pages 217/8] be deleted from the final Scheme document, to avoid 
any confusion.  
 
The SLO explained that the reference to the levels of fines [as imposed by the 
Magistrates’ Court under the ‘standard scales’] had been used as a formula to 
determine a minima and maxima range of penalty points for each Level of risk 

Agenda Item 3 Page 4



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 25 MARCH 2014 
 
 

5 

[1–4] under the Scheme, using a graduated scale from 1 to 25. This produced 
a maximum Level 4 risk penalty of 25 points, corresponding to the maximum 
fine of £2,500 for a Level 4 Offence as imposed by the Magistrates’ Court. 
The definitions of risk levels and consequent penalty point scoring were set 
out in Table 1 [agenda page 218]. 
 
The SLO undertook to replace the reference to monetary amounts with 
percentage figures in the final document for the Scheme, whilst retaining the 
graduated 1 -25 point scale range.  
 
The Committee considered the proposal to increase the period of time from 
12 months to 36 months over which penalty points awarded to any individual 
licence holder would remain live on his/her licence. 
 
The SLO drew Members’ attention to the fact that penalty points on a DVLA 
issued licence remain live for 36 months and that the Deregulation Bill 
(currently before Parliament) proposed that the licence period for Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire drivers’ licences be extended from 12 months to 36 
months. 
 
Members considered whether the amendment would be a Substantial 
Amendment requiring consultation with the Trades. It was noted from the 
tabled documents, that although objecting to the increase from 12 months to 
36 months, the Trades’ representative had not commented on the impact that 
the change would have on the Trades. Members considered that licence 
holders would suffer no financial detriment and that they could continue to 
work.        
 
Following further discussion with Officers and the Head of Legal Services, 
Members concluded that the provisions of the proposed Scheme were; 
proportionate, fair and reasonable to both the Trades and the Council as 
Licensing Authority and should be adopted in full.  
 
The Chairman and Members asked that the sustained efforts of Licensing 
Officers together with the Head of Legal Services in revising the Licensing 
Policy and formulating the Penalty Points Scheme, be recorded in the Minutes 
together with the Committee’s thanks. 
 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the response to the consultation on the draft 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy at Appendix A to 
the report be noted and that it be further noted that as outlined in 
paragraph 3.4 of the report, many of the concerns raised by the Trades 
have been addressed. 
 

2. That the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy at 
Appendix B to the report be adopted with effect from 1 April 2014 with 

Agenda Item 3Page 5



 

 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

two exceptions as detailed at (i) and (ii) below and consequent action 
at (iii): 
 
(i) Paragraph 15.4.1 - the twelve (12) month minimum requirement 

to hold a GB driving licence; 
  

(ii) Paragraph 24.1.1 – minimum age of twenty one (21) years to 
hold a driver’s licence; 

 
(iii) That the Trades be consulted on the Committee’s proposal to 

increase the 12 month minimum requirement to hold a GB 
driving licence to 36 months and that as a result of this proposal, 
the minimum age requirement of 21 years be also reviewed, and 
that a further report on the outcome of the consultation be 
submitted to the Committee in July 2014.  

 
            

3. That following the  further review of the Penalty Points Scheme, the 
Committee: 
 

(a) endorses the consequence risk matrix approach categorised 
according to levels of seriousness (Levels 1- 4); 
 

(b) bases the maximum number of penalty points for each Level of risk, 
as detailed in Appendix M to the draft Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Licensing Policy up to a maximum of 25 points, using a 
percentage rather than monetary formula; 

 
(c) endorses the application of three years as a reasonable period of 

time over which the total penalty points awarded to any individual 
licence holder should remain on a licence.  

 
4. That for the reasons outlined in para.3.5.2 of the report, the Code of 

Good Conduct be dispensed with. 
 

5. That, for the reasons outlined in para.3.5.3 of the report, the use of 
proxies be permitted subject to the rules detailed in section 14.5.1 of 
the draft Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy at 
Appendix B to the report. 
 

6. That for the reasons outlined in para. 3.5.4 of the report, the Committee 
endorses the definitions of Substantial Amendment(s) and Non-
substantial Amendment(s). 

 

 
The meeting closed at 8.00 pm 

 
 Councillor I D Armitt 

CHAIRMAN 

Agenda Item 3 Page 6



   

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
14 JULY 2014 

 

D:\apps\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\7\AI00023703\$oovwgzmt.doc  
 

 
 
REVIEW OF MINIMUM 21 YEARS OF AGE CRITERIA AND 
EXTENSION OF THE 12 MONTHS DRIVING LICENCE REQUIREMENT 
TO 36 MONTHS - CONSULTATION RESPONSE 
 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 To consider the responses to the consultation on respectively, the proposals to 

review the minimum 21 years of age criteria to a ‘no age’ criteria and to extend the 
qualifying 12 months full ordinary GB, or equivalent, driving licence requirement to 
36 months. 

 
1.2 To consider other matters raised by the consultees.  
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the responses to the consultation at Appendix A to the report be noted.  

 
2.2 That, for the reasons outlined in para.3.5(g) of the report, the proposal to extend the 

qualifying period for holding a full ordinary GB driving licence, or equivalent, to 36 
months, not be endorsed.  

 
2.3 That for the reasons outlined in para.3.6(i) of the report, there be no change to the 

minimum 21 years of age criteria.  
 

2.4 That for the reasons outlined in paras.3.7.1(d),(g) and (h) of the report, the 
Committee upholds it decision to apply the DSA test to first time applicants and, 
where relevant, as an alternative to the application of penalty points on a licence. 

 
2.5 That, having considered the Trade’s objection to the extension of the period of time 

from 12 months to 36 months over which penalty points awarded to any individual 
licence holder remains live on his/her licence and the Trade’s request for the matter 
to be consulted on, the Committee, for the reasons outlined in paras.3.7.3(f) and (g) 
of the report, upholds its original decision to extend the time limit from12 months to 
36 months. 

 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 
3.1. At the Licensing Committee meeting held on 24 March 2014 [Min.No.16], the 

Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy was adopted subject to 
consultation on the proposals to: 

 
(a) extend the qualifying period of 12 months for holding a full ordinary GB 

driving licence, or equivalent, to 36 months; and 
(b) review the minimum 21 years of age criteria. 

Agenda Item 5Page 7



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
14 JULY 2014 

  

2 
 

 
3.2 The Committee put forward the proposal to amend the qualifying 12 month full 

GB, or equivalent, driving licence requirement to 36 months, primarily on the 
grounds that a driver with additional road driving experience will be more 
confident and able to deal with varying driving situations/conditions, thereby 
improving public confidence in drivers generally and improving safety amongst 
drivers.  

 

 A further ground put forward in support of the amendment, was that other Kent 
local authorities and Transport for London (TfL), required drivers to have held a 
full UK/EEA licence for 36 months prior to their application for a hackney 
carriage or private hire driver’s licence.   

 

3.3 The proposal to increase the qualifying period from 12 months to 36 months 
requires a review of the minimum 21 years of age criteria.   

 

3.4 The proposals were considered to be a substantial amendment to the Policy, 
triggering the requirement to consult with the Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Trade. Consultation took place between 3 April and 19 June 2014.  A 
newsletter detailing the proposals was sent to the Trade in April 2014.  
 

3.5 DVLA Licence held period: 12 months or 36 months  
 

(a) The legal position is as follows: 
 

i. A UK applicant for a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle driver’s licence 
must have held a full ordinary GB driving licence (issued by the DVLA) for at 
least 12 months preceding the date of the application; 

 

ii. Driving licences issued by countries in the EEA and Northern Ireland count 
towards the 12 month qualification period; 

 

iii. Driving licences issued by Gibraltar, British Forces Germany, a 'designated 
country and Jersey, Guernsey and the Isle of Man count towards the 12 
month qualification period, although the Licensing Authority will not consider 
an application for a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle driver’s licence, 
unless the applicant has exchanged their issuing country’s driving licence for 
a full ordinary GB driving licence; 

 

iv. Applicants from other countries must have held a full ordinary GB driving 
licence for at least 12 months preceding the date of the application for a 
hackney carriage or private hire vehicle driver’s licence. 

 

(b) The consultees’ responses both for and against the change are as set out in 
Appendix A.  A total of fifteen individual responses [pages 1 to 15] were 
received. Fourteen were in favour of the proposed changes and one 
against.  In general, the responses “for change” were not supported by any 
reasons.  A former driving instructor commented that the standard required 
to qualify and pass the present UK driving test is quite stringent and that he 
fails to see how introducing a three year qualifying period would achieve a 
safer system for the public or the driver. 

 

Agenda Item 5 Page 8



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
14 JULY 2014 

  

3 
 

(c) To establish comparison data, a survey of all 13 Kent local authorities and 
TFL was carried out by the Licensing Authority (Appendix B).  The results 
show that only TfL stipulates a 36 month full driving licence requirement.  

 
(d) All Night Cars and the Dartford Private Hire Drivers Association (DPHDA’s) 

response are at pages 16 to 37 of Appendix A.  The DPHDA’s response is 
supported by statistical information, based on information provided by the 
Licensing Authority on the number of hackney carriage and private hire 
licences held between March 2008 and 2013 and the Licensing Authority’s 
Knowledge Test results recorded between April 2011 and 2014.  The 
analysis provided by the DPHDA, indicates an overall decline in the Trade in 
Dartford.  DPHDA comment that this is as a result of a significant number of 
those passing the Knowledge Tests not entering the Trade.  

 
(e) The DPHDA comments ‘The sections of the Trade that are likely to support 

the raising of this barrier to entry are the drivers.  They see the queues of 
waiting customers getting longer.  They fail to realise that customers will not 
wait forever and if the service they require cannot be provided customers 
will desert them and this will cause a further decline in the Trade and put the 
public at risk of being carried by unlicensed drivers’.   

 
(f) The conclusions reached by the DPHDA are set out at pages 22 to 37 of 

Appendix A.  
 
(g) Licensing Officers concur with the DPHDA’s views that the proposed 

amendment to 36 months, will be a barrier to new applicants and may lead 
to a decline in the number of drivers, specifically as a large proportion of the 
hackney carriage trade are over the age of 50.  Further, Officers conclude 
that raising the qualifying period for holding a full ordinary GB driving 
licence, or equivalent, to 36 months could disadvantage older applicants 
seeking to re-train as hackney carriage or private hire vehicle drivers.  

 
The Committee is recommended not to extend the current 12 months 
qualifying period for holding a full ordinary GB driving licence, or equivalent, 
to 36 months. 

 
(h) The DPHDA comments that the claim made by a member of the Committee 

that ‘other Kent licensing authorities required drivers to have a minimum of 
36 months driving experience’ is a misrepresentation and therefore a 
breach of the Member Code of Conduct.  

 
(i) Qualified privilege attaches to statements made in committees.  Horrocks v 

Lowe (1972) establishes that ‘privilege’ is not destroyed where the person 
making the statement honestly believes in the truth of his assertions but 
has no reasonable grounds or is hasty in jumping to conclusions.   

 
(j) Officers have a responsibility to ensure that, in reaching a decision, the 

Committee addresses its mind only to matters that it ought to take into 
account or does not refuse or neglect to take account of such matters and is 

Agenda Item 5Page 9



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
14 JULY 2014 

  

4 
 

not influenced by matters that are irrelevant (the Wednesbury principle).  
The need to demonstrate that the right reasons have been taken into 
account in reaching decisions puts a premium on accurate and 
comprehensive report writing.  As such, the validity of the statement made 
by the member of the Committee was subject to verification by Officers 
during the consultation period.  Appendix B to the report shows that 12 of 
the 13 Kent local authorities all have a 12 month full driving licence 
requirement, Canterbury has a 24 month requirement and only TfL 
stipulates a 36 months requirement.  

 
3.6 Criteria – 21 years of age or no age criteria for licensed drivers 

 
(a) The consultees’ responses both for and against the age 21 criteria are as set 

out in Appendix A.  A total of six individual responses were received. All were in 
favour of keeping the existing age 21 criteria.  In general, the responses were 
not supported by any reasons.   

 
(b) To establish comparison data, a survey of all 13 Kent local authorities and TfL 

was carried out by the Licensing Authority (Appendix B).  The results show that 
all Kent local authorities and TfL have a minimum age criteria, ranging between 
18 to 21. 

 
(c) The introduction in 2009 of the Licensing Authority’s 21 years of age criteria, 

was based on police and insurance company statistics, which indicated that the 
high percentage of accidents causing physical injury was attributed to the 17-21 
age group.   

 
(d) Responses from the DPHDA and All Night Cars advocate removing the age 

criteria altogether. DPHDA comments ‘The data provided by the Licensing 
Section shows the Trade is in decline and as it is now harder than ever to get 
insurance for such drivers, there is little point in legislating against it.  If 
somebody under the age of 21 really wants to do the job and they manage to 
get insurance, that person is likely to make a good driver and the Licensing 
Authority should take a leaf out of Ashford's policy and not be discouraging 
such people’.   

 
The DPHDA comments that: 
 
i. [prior to 2011], the Licensing Authority licensed 3 to 4 drivers under the age 

of 21, with no [subsequent] evidence of significant problems; 
ii. the 'Taxi and Private Hire Best Practice Guidance' does not consider a 

restriction necessary;  
iii. there is no hard evidence to show that abolishing the age 21 restriction 

would be detrimental to the Trade or public or personal safety; and 
iv. the continued policy of refusing to license someone under the age of 21 

appears discriminatory. 
 

(e) There is no exception in the Equality Act 2010 which applies to the situation. 
However, age based treatment is lawful if it can be objectively justified and the 

Agenda Item 5 Page 10



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
14 JULY 2014 

  

5 
 

less favourable treatment contributes to a legitimate aim and is proportionate. 
The Licensing Authority has already considered that the welfare and safety of 
the travelling public is a legitimate aim and that any discriminatory effect is 
outweighed by the importance and benefits of the legitimate aim. 

 
(f) In May 2014, the RAC Foundation released new statistics showing that nearly 

12% of people who were hurt or killed in a car accident are involved in a crash 
with drivers aged between 17 and 19, despite the fact that 17 to 19 year olds 
only make up 1.5% of the total number of licensed drivers.  

 
(g) The Association of British Insurers (ABI) has long campaigned for safer roads.  

ABI has consistently argued that unless radical reforms are made at national 
level, the poor safety record of young drivers will continue.  If the number of 
crashes involving young drivers decreases, the financial risk they pose to an 
insurer will decrease and insurance premiums for young drivers will follow.   

 
(h) ‘Brake the road safety charity’ refers to research that shows that peer pressure 

can encourage bad driving and result in drivers ‘showing off’ to their 
passengers, as well as causing distraction.  The more passengers, the more 
risk, with the risk being higher when the drivers are aged 16 and 17 rather than 
18 and 19.  With two or more passengers, the fatal crash risk for 16-19 year-old 
drivers is more than five times what it is when driving alone.   
 

(i) The Council’s key objective is safety to the public, which includes other road 
users, pedestrians and passengers.  Officers consider that, based on the 
research conducted by third parties (and contrary to DPHDA’s view that there is 
no hard evidence to show that abolishing the age 21 restriction would be 
detrimental to the public or personal safety), young drivers are statistically more 
likely to be involved in major crashes.  These crashes will often have 
devastating consequences involving life-changing injuries.  Ultimately, the 
indication through research statistics, is that, although young drivers may have 
been taught to drive safely, they frequently over-estimate their abilities and 
underestimate dangers which, coupled with a desire to show off, leads to some 
young drivers driving in dangerous and high risk ways.   

 
The Committee is recommended not to amend the current minimum 21 years of 
age criteria to a ‘no age’ criteria.  

 
3.7 Other Issues Raised by the Consultees  
 

The DPHDA has taken the opportunity of the consultation to raise matters which it 
should have addressed during the Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Policy review 
consultation. 

Agenda Item 5Page 11



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
14 JULY 2014 

  

6 
 

 
3.7.1  Driving Standards Agency Taxi Test 
 

(a) To establish comparison data, a survey of all 13 Kent local authorities and TFL 
was carried out by the Licensing Authority (Appendix B).  The results show that 
11 Kent local authorities apply the DSA test with TfL applying the test to 
hackney carriage drivers only.  

 

(b) The DPHDA and All Night Cars object to the application of the DSA test 
adopted by the Committee [24.03.14 Min.No.16] and refer to the variations in 
the way local authorities apply the test. 

 

(c) The DPHDA compares the DSA test pass rate results with the statistical 
information gathered from a report on the effectiveness or otherwise of speed 
awareness courses.  Officers cannot see the relevance of this comparison.  The 
two courses are completely different - one being a physical driving test the 
other a classroom based exercise.  The DSA test (produced by DVSA1), 
concentrates on the driving attributes observed on the day.   
 

(d) The DPHDA’s statistics show that the DSA test is not easy to pass and it is this 
irrefutable evidence of a good standard of driving that provides the Licensing 
Authority with the level of confidence needed to licence all new first time 
hackney carriage and private hire driver applicants.  

 

(e) The Policy stipulates that the DSA test is an alternative to penalty points, where 
there are complaints of poor driving. The DPHDA comments ‘DVLA already has 
penalty points scheme that deals with certain types of motoring offences 
including poor driving.  When penalty points are awarded the evidence for doing 
so is generally very sound.  ‘Making a driver take a DSA test for accruing a 
certain number of penalty points on their licence would be double jeopardy.’ 

 

(f) The DVLA issues driving licences and the DSA is responsible for controlling the 
quality of various courses and conducting theory tests and practical tests.  If 
numerous complaints are received and upheld about a hackney carriage or 
private hire vehicle driver’s poor standard of driving, the Licensing Authority 
may consider applying the DSA test as an alternative to suspension of the 
driver’s licence. 
 

(g) The Licensing Authority is entitled to adopt policies which will regulate the 
exercise of a given discretionary power and which seeks, both in fairness to the 
licence holder potentially affected and also to protect the public interest, to have 
a staged process, by which the cumulative effect of incidents of misconduct 
may well lead ultimately to the conclusion that in the judgment of the Licensing 
Authority, a person is not a ‘fit and proper person’ to continue to enjoy the 
relevant licence (R (app Singh) v Cardiff City Council (2012) EWHC 1852 
(admin)).   
 

(h) The DSA test is specifically aimed at the Trade. The Licensing Authority’s 
application of the DSA test for first time applicants, is to ensure that there is a 

                                            
1
 Driver Vehicle Standards Agency 

Agenda Item 5 Page 12



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
14 JULY 2014 

  

7 
 

common standard of driving for all drivers, regardless of where and when their 
full driving licences were obtained.   
 

(i) If the Committee concludes that the qualifying period for a full ordinary GB 
driving licence should be extended to 36 months, Officers are of the view that 
this, in conjunction with the DSA test, will act as a barrier to entry to the Trades. 
 

3.7.2  Language Proficiency 
 

(a) The DPHDA questions the lack of guidance from the Licensing Authority on the 
procedure concerning the application of the English language proficiency test.  

  
(b) The Policy states 'Any person applying for the first time to the Licensing 

Authority for a Driver’s Licence, must provide (at their own expense), proof of 
their oral competency in the English language, by means of a recognised 
certificate (see Information Pack under services “Taxi” at www.dartford.gov.uk)’.   

 
(c) The Licensing Authority is in the process of contracting with a language 

proficiency test provider.  Information on the Council’s website has been 
updated, to reflect the statement made in the Policy.  

 
3.7.3 Penalty Points Scheme - extension of the period of time from 12 months to 

36 months over which penalty points awarded to any individual licence 
holder remain live on his/her licence 

 
(a) At the March 2014 meeting, the Committee considered amendments to the 

Penalty Points Scheme [Min. No.16].  One of the amendments concerned the 
extension of the period of time from 12 months to 36 months over which penalty 
points awarded to any individual licence holder would remain live on his/her 
licence (the ‘Extension’).  At the time, the Committee were advised that the 
Deregulation Bill (currently before Parliament), intended for hackney carriage 
and private hire driver licences to be for three years.  

 
(b) In an email [17 June 2014] addressed to Committee members (Appendix C), 

the DPHDA representative complains that the amendment was an ‘un-
announced change’ to the Policy. The representative comments ‘My objection 
was dismissed on the basis that I had provided no comment and that the 
change was a Non-Substantial Amendment’. 
 

(c) The Committee is referred to the minutes of the 25 March 2014 meeting, which 
states ‘Members considered whether the amendment would be a Substantial 
Amendment requiring consultation with the Trades.  It was noted from the 
tabled documents, that although objecting to the increase from 12 months to 36 
months, the Trades’ representative had not commented on the impact that the 
change would have on the Trades.  Members considered that licence holders 
would suffer no financial detriment and that they could continue to work’. 
 

(d) In the email of 17 June 2014, the DPHDA’s representative outlines his objection 
to the amendment as follows: 

Agenda Item 5Page 13



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
14 JULY 2014 

  

8 
 

 
‘PPincreasing the period of time that penalty points will remain on a licence by 
2 years does: 

 

1. have an impact on a licence holder because it increases the penalty; 
2. have implications for the licence holder because it increases the possibility of 

suspension or revocation of the licence through disciplinary action; 
3. change the intended meaning because 1 year does not mean 3 years. 

 

(e) The DPHDA’s representative requests that the Committee ‘recognise that 
increasing the period of time that points would remain on a licence from 1 year 
to 3 years is a Substantial Amendment and that the Committee reverses the 
decision taken at the 25 March meeting by putting it out for public consultation’. 

 

(f) Licensing Officers have considered the DPHDA representative’s objection and 
comment as follows: 

 

i.  The Extension will in reality, only affect a small number of licence holders who 
persistently breach the legislation, licence conditions etc.; 

 

ii. Having increased the maximum level of penalty points from 12 to 25 (as 
suggested by the DPHDA in the last review) and not reviewing the time scale 
the points remain ‘live’ on a licence, would have rendered the Penalty Points 
Scheme ineffective e.g. a driver, during the course of a 12 month period, 
commits two major2 offences, attracting a maximum of 10 points for each 
offence.  Taking this scenario, if the time scale remained at 12 months, the 20 
penalty points would be ‘spent’ on the 12 month anniversary of the award of 
the last set of points, precluding, where applicable, the consideration of the 
suspension or revocation of the licence.  Further, the Licensing Authority 
would be precluded from considering the ‘spent’ points on an application to 
renew the licence.  

 

iii. Three years is considered a reasonable period of time over which the total 
penalty points awarded to any individual licence holder should be assessed.  
This three year period is applied on a roll forward basis, so as to allow any 
older penalty points to be considered as ‘spent’ and therefore excluded from 
the running total recorded against any individual licence holder.  The period is 
considered to be of sufficient length so as to allow any licence holder who may 
find himself/herself accumulating penalty points, to take appropriate remedial 
action before facing the possibility of other enforcement action being taken 
against him/her.  

 

iv. In the months preceding the March 2014 Committee meeting, the general 
expectation was that the Deregulation Bill would require that the licence period 
for hackney carriage and private hire vehicle driver licences would be 
extended from 12 months to 36 months.  This is borne out by a comment 
made by Tom Brake MP in the seventeenth sitting of the Public Bill Committee 
on 25 Match 2014 ‘Going back to new clause 11, the legislation I mentioned 
allows a licensing authority to grant a driver’s licence for a maximum of three 
years and a private hire vehicle operator licence for a maximum of five years.  

                                            
2
 Categorised in accordance with the ‘Consequential Risk Assessment’ 

Agenda Item 5 Page 14



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
14 JULY 2014 

  

9 
 

The intention at the time was that licences should be for three years and for 
five years’.  Tom Brake MP went onto say ‘New clause 11’s purpose is to 
standardise at three years the duration of both taxi and private hire driver 
licences and at five years the licence for a private hire vehicle operator. Any 
shorter periods will be on account of the circumstances of any particular 
application, but the expectation is three years for drivers and five years for 
operators’. 

 

(g) The Extension was not envisaged at the time of the consultation on the review 
of the Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy and the possibility of 
this Extension came about only as a reaction to the responses received from 
the DPHDA’s representative to the consultation.  Through the circulation of the 
revised Penalty Points Scheme prior to the March 2014 Committee meeting, 
the DPHDA’s representative had been provided with the opportunity to explain 
how the Extension would impact on the Trade.   

 

Having considered the practical impact of the Extension on the Trade and the 
fact that the DPHDA’s representative had had the opportunity to submit his 
views, the Committee was under no obligation to consult further on the 
Extension, after the consultation had closed3.   

 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
  Not applicable  
  

5.  Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 

 

Financial Implications None 
Legal Implications Equality Impact Assessment – The 

Licensing Authority has considered the 
Policy criteria & its working practices to 
ensure that these do not discriminate 
against any social group 

Staffing Implications None 
Administrative Implications None 
Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints 

 
6. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Consultees' responses 
Appendix B – Licensing Authority’s Survey Analysis 
Appendix C – Email dated 17 June 2014 from the DPHDA’s representative  

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Documents 
consulted 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

                                            
3
 Stuart Bracking and others v Secretary of State for Work and Pensions [2013] EWCA Civ 1345 

Agenda Item 5Page 15



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
14 JULY 2014 

  

10 
 

   Marie Kelly-Stone 
Joanne Philpott 

Legal Services 
Licensing 

N/A 

 

Agenda Item 5 Page 16



Agenda Item 5Page 17



Agenda Item 5 Page 18



Agenda Item 5Page 19



Agenda Item 5 Page 20



Agenda Item 5Page 21



Agenda Item 5 Page 22



Agenda Item 5Page 23



Agenda Item 5 Page 24



Agenda Item 5Page 25



Agenda Item 5 Page 26



Agenda Item 5Page 27



Agenda Item 5 Page 28



Agenda Item 5Page 29



Agenda Item 5 Page 30



Agenda Item 5Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A part II 

1 of 6 

 

ALL NIGHT CARS COMMENTS IN RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION DOCUMENT FOR CHANGE TO 

HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING POLICY AS PROPOSED AT LICENSING 

COMMITTEE 25 MARCH 2014 

 

In an undated circular I have been asked to comment on the implications of proposed changes to the 

entry criteria for a hackney carriage/private hire driver licence.  Unfortunately, the message is 

unclear and I can only assume that I am being invited to comment on all four elements as the 

inclusion of those that had not changed would otherwise be pointless.  I will therefore deal with 

each in turn. 

 

PROPOSAL TO INCREASE FROM 12 MONTHS TO 36 MONTHS THE PERIOD OF TIME FOR WHICH A 

DVLA/EU LICENCE MUST BE HELD. 

The current criterion is that an applicant must have held a full driving licence for a minimum of 12 

months has been around for decades and now I am being asked to comment on a claim that 1 year is 

insufficient time to have obtained an appropriate level of driving experience.  However, no evidence 

has been provided to support this proposal. 

 

Consider my own case.  I passed my driving test when I was 17 and was driving a minicab in 

Bexleyheath by the time I was 18.  In my first year of driving I covered 86,000 miles when the 

average annual mileage for a driver was 30,000 miles per annum.  Thus in my first year I gained the 

equivalent of 3 years driving experience.  Whilst this may put me in the minority, it is worth 

comparing this with someone 10 years older than me that took and passed their test at the same 

time but was a weekend driver who only did 5000 miles a year.  Had this occurred under the current 

system; after 3 years and 15,000 miles that person would be in a position to apply for an HC or PH 

driver licence whilst I would be excluded for being under the age of 21.  I am sure that there are 

many under the age of 21 whose annual mileage is greater than that driven by either of their 

parents, just look at how many 6th formers are driving to school in their own car.  Many 16 year olds 

can be seen riding mopeds and whilst we may not think of them as being the best or riders, they are 

acquiring experience.  My own experience clearly illustrates the gaping hole in the argument that 

the length of time a person has held a driving licence can be used as a measure of experience and 

skill behind the wheel. 

 

Now consider the barriers to entry, the biggest being insurance.  A new driver with any sense will 

rent a vehicle as the cost of insurance is included in the vehicle rent.  I rent out vehicles and I can 

attest to the fact that it is very costly to get insurance cover for a driver under 25 years of age and if 

you can find an insurance company that will insure a person under the age of 21, it is prohibitively 

expensive.  In discussion with my insurance broker about the direction in which things are moving 

with regard to hire and reward insurance he informed me that many insurance companies required 

that drivers must have held a full licence for 3 years and some companies are wary of insuring 

drivers that unused to driving 50,000 – 60,000 miles a year.  Again this supports my contention that 

argument that the length of time a person has held a driving licence cannot be used as a measure of 

experience gained behind the wheel. 

 

As a private hire operator my business depends on having responsible and reliable drivers and 

before taking on a driver I always assess their driving and interpersonal skills.  Over the years I have 

taken on drivers under 21 and drivers who have held a full licence for 3 years; and whilst some have 

been better than others and some have left the Company, the majority have remained in the trade.  

I therefore consider that if a driver has held a licence for less than 3 years and I am prepared to take 

them on and can get him/her insured, then the Council should not be creating additional barriers.  If 

the driver does not shape up I can provide additional guidance or stop him/her from working on my 

circuit. 

Agenda Item 5Page 33



Appendix A part II 

2 of 6 

 

 

I have been advised of the results of a survey carried out by the Dartford Private Hire Drivers 

Association (DPHDA), of the lengths of time that that a person must have held a full licence before 

an application for a hackney carriage/ private hire driver licence can be applied for specified by 

Transport for London and all the Kent Licensing Authorities.  The results were that Transport for 

London only specifies a minimum age for hackney carriage drivers; but they require private hire 

drivers to have held a full licence for three years; whilst of the thirteen Kent Licensing Authorities, 

only Canterbury has a three year requirement.  These results do not provide a reason to introduce a 

change. 

 

From the business point of view, the numbers that are passing the private hire knowledge test are 

barely sufficient to support the turnover of drivers in my business, let alone allow me to grow it.  I 

have to turn thousands of jobs away each month because of a shortage of drivers.  I understand that 

information provided to by the Licensing Section to the DPHDA shows that, from April 2011 April 

2014 inclusive, a total of 44 people passed the private hire tests and 5 passed the hackney carriage 

tests.  Of those passes the numbers that had held a full driving licence for less than 3 years were 11 

private hire and 1 hackney carriage.  On the basis of these figures the Trades cannot afford to do 

without those that have held a licence for less than 3 years if the service we provide to the public is 

to meet demand. 

 

Many drivers, both hackney carriage and private hire, would welcome a drop in numbers because 

they would see it as more customers chasing fewer drivers. However, if we lose these numbers, then 

the private hire trade and probably the hackney carriage trade would go into decline in Dartford.  

The likely outcome of this will be an increase in unlicensed operators and drivers in the Town which 

will put public safety at risk. 

 

Conclusion 

The period of time that a person has held a full licence is not a valid measure of driving experience. 

Further, obtaining insurance for those under 25 years of age presents a significant barrier to entry 

which in itself comes close to closing the door on anyone that has held a full driving  licence for less 

than 3 years.  However, if a driver can obtain insurance, either directly or indirectly, then the 

Licensing Authority should not prevent that person from working. 

 

The fact that only one of the thirteen Licensing Authorities in Kent requires and applicant for a 

hackney carriage/private hire driver licence to have held a full DVLA licence for 3 years does not 

support a need for change. 

 

From the business point of view, the proportion of those passing the knowledge tests have held a 

full driving licence for less than 3 years are vital to maintaining the services the Trades provide to the 

public.  The loss of these numbers will mean that they will go into decline and public safety will be 

put at risk because of an increase in the number of unlicensed drivers and operators. 

 

Recommendation 

There should be no change to the current policy. 

 

PROPOSAL TO RETAIN THE REQUIREMENT THAT A PERSON MUST BE 21 YEARS OF AGE BEFORE 

THEY CAN APPLY FOR A HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE. 

The case I have made for rejecting the requirement that a person must have held a full driving 

licence for 3 years before they can apply for a hackney carriage/private hire driver licence applies 

equally to this requirement. 

 

Agenda Item 5 Page 34



Appendix A part II 

3 of 6 

 

The fact is that in the past Dartford Borough Council, to my knowledge, has licensed 3 or 4 drivers 

under the age of 21 that have worked on the All Night Cars circuit without any problem.  However, it 

is now harder than ever to get insurance for such drivers.  This point is well made in the in the 

comments on Section 24.1 of the draft Policy provided by the DPHDA in response to the public 

consultation.  These can be found on pages 92 and 93 of the Agenda Reports pack for Licensing 

Committee Meeting held on 25 March 2014 (a copy of the text is at Appendix A). 

 

Conclusion 

The facts are that the Council has in the past licensed drivers under the age of 21 without there 

being any problems, the number of under 21 year olds granted a licence has been minimal, the 'Taxi 

and Private Hire Best Practice Guidance' does not consider a restriction necessary and obtaining 

insurance provides a significant barrier to entry.  Where is the hard evidence to show that abolishing 

the age 21 restriction would be detrimental to the Trades? 

 

Recommendation 

The requirement that a person applying for a hackney carriage/private hire driver licence must be at 

least 21 years of age should be abolished. 

 

PROPOSAL a:  BEFORE AN APPLICATION FOR A HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE 

CAN BE SUBMITTED BY A FIRST TIME APPLICANT, THE DSA TEST MUST BE PASSED. 

Yet another barrier to entry, the claim being that it will provide "a common standard of driving for all 

drivers, regardless of where and when they passed their test."  However, as research carried out by 

the DPHDA shows, Dartford, like most of the other Licensing Authorities in Kent that have 

introduced the test, only intend to make it a prerequisite for first time applicants. 

 

The disability awareness training course recently arranged by the Licensing Authority for those that 

did not have an exemption was not the usual one day course but a BTEC.  The BTEC includes an on 

the job driving and customer care assessment.  If the BTEC is to become the norm for providing 

disability awareness training; why is there a need to make a driver take another driving test? 

 

I can find no authoritative information on the pass rate but from what I have heard it is not very 

high; around 50%.  The real test will be whether the test will yield any real long term benefits or will 

it be like the speed awareness courses where many of those take the course revert to their old ways 

in a very short space of time. 

 

In my view the pass rates for the knowledge tests are low and therefore the numbers coming into 

the trade are insufficient to meet natural wastage and it will be several years before all private hire 

drivers have passed the DAS test and many more years before all hackney carriage drivers will have 

passed it. 

 

It is interesting to note that whilst Transport for London required hackney carriage drivers to pass 

the DAS test, the test is not a requirement for private hire drivers. 

 

Conclusion 

The DSA test would be yet another barrier to entry that will result in a drop in the number of new 

drivers coming in to the Trade. The consequence of this would be that the public would suffer, 

particularly those of my customers that need a wheelchair accessible vehicle. 

 

Greater London is just across the Borough boundary.  If Dartford introduces the DSA test, those 

considering becoming a private hire driver will be more likely to seek to become licensed by 

Transport for London where a DSA driving test is not a requirement. 

Agenda Item 5Page 35



Appendix A part II 

4 of 6 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation 

The likely impact of introducing the DSA test in Dartford is that it will be detrimental to the Trades 

and the public.  Further, the long term benefits are uncertain.  It therefore cannot be recommended. 

 

PROPOSAL b:  WHERE COMPLAINTS OF BAD DRIVING ARE RECEIVED, THE LICENSING AUTHORITY 

MAY AS A FORM OF ENFORCEMENT MAY REQUIRE THE DRIVER TO UNDERTAKE THE DSA TEST AS 

AN ALTERNATIVE TO THE ISSUE OF PENALTY POINTS. 

The DVLA penalty points already deals with poor driving standards and where points are given the 

penalty is supported by hard evidence.  Further, requiring a driver to take a test because he has 

accumulated a number of DVLA penalty points amounts to double jeopardy. 

 

The Policy contains no guidance on how this matter will be managed and that gives me cause for 

concern because complaints of poor driving are not hard evidence and can often be malicious. 

 

Conclusion 

The DVLA penalty points scheme deals effectively with poor driving standards and drivers should not 

be punished twice for the same offence. 

 

The absence of guidance on how this matter will managed is sufficient in itself to remove this 

method of enforcement from the policy. 

 

Recommendation 

That part of the Policy that permits the DSA test may be used as an alternative to the issue of 

penalty points where complaints of poor driving have been received should be deleted. 

 

PROPOSAL:  ENGLISH TEST (OR ACCEPTABLE DOCUMENTATION) 

The Policy gives no details of what is required in terms of oral competency and refers the reader to 

the information pack on the Councils website which, as at 3 June 2014, was Issue 4/2013 and it gave 

the following information:   

 

You will also need to demonstrate that you have a good command of spoken English by 

undertaking a verbal comprehension test with the Vehicle Licensing Officer prior to your 

application being accepted to sit the Knowledge Test. 

 

Why is there a need to change?  I do not have to let a driver work on my circuit if I consider that 

he/she is unable to communicate effectively with his customers and a hackney carriage driver will 

not make a living without being able to communicate effectively. 

 

Conclusion 

We have a statement of policy for which there is no policy. 

 

Recommendation 

Retain the current assessment method. 

Agenda Item 5 Page 36



Appendix A part II 

5 of 6 

 

 

Appendix A 

 

Agenda Item 7   Page 92 

�������� �

����	
�� ������� ���� ������ �
�����
� 

���� ������� ���

������ ��� ��������� ����!��� �!���"��� ��#� ��� ��$���� !% #��& ���$'������� #�"

���#����� #��!��#��" (���  !���& �����#��� ��� '!���)�*�� !%  !��� "��+���

'!���� # ���, �! ������*+��& ����� '#�������� #�" !���� �!#" ������

�����#��� #���"��� ��#������� ��"��#�� ��#� ����� �� # ������ "����� !%

���'!���)�*�� �� "��+�� )��#+�!�� #)!+� �(��� !�� -��.  �#�� !% #���

/012123 456 789:;<8=6 9><>79>7=9 ><?6 < 5@A79>7= B76CD >56E F@ 8@> F6<A/012123 456 789:;<8=6 9><>79>7=9 ><?6 < 5@A79>7= B76CD >56E F@ 8@> F6<A/012123 456 789:;<8=6 9><>79>7=9 ><?6 < 5@A79>7= B76CD >56E F@ 8@> F6<A/012123 456 789:;<8=6 9><>79>7=9 ><?6 < 5@A79>7= B76CD >56E F@ 8@> F6<A

9G6=7H7=<AAE C7>5 5<=?86E =<;;7<I6 <8F G;7B<>6 57;69G6=7H7=<AAE C7>5 5<=?86E =<;;7<I6 <8F G;7B<>6 57;69G6=7H7=<AAE C7>5 5<=?86E =<;;7<I6 <8F G;7B<>6 57;69G6=7H7=<AAE C7>5 5<=?86E =<;;7<I6 <8F G;7B<>6 57;6 F;7B6;9 <8F >56;6H@;6 F@ 8@>F;7B6;9 <8F >56;6H@;6 F@ 8@>F;7B6;9 <8F >56;6H@;6 F@ 8@>F;7B6;9 <8F >56;6H@;6 F@ 8@>

G;@B7F6 <8 <==:;<>6 <99699J68>1 K@C6B6;L 789:;<8=6 G;6J7:J9 <;6 M<96FG;@B7F6 <8 <==:;<>6 <99699J68>1 K@C6B6;L 789:;<8=6 G;6J7:J9 <;6 M<96FG;@B7F6 <8 <==:;<>6 <99699J68>1 K@C6B6;L 789:;<8=6 G;6J7:J9 <;6 M<96FG;@B7F6 <8 <==:;<>6 <99699J68>1 K@C6B6;L 789:;<8=6 G;6J7:J9 <;6 M<96F

;79? M<96F <8F N 5<B6 M668 <FB796F ME < 5<=?86E =<;;7<I6 <8F G;7B<>6 57;6;79? M<96F <8F N 5<B6 M668 <FB796F ME < 5<=?86E =<;;7<I6 <8F G;7B<>6 57;6;79? M<96F <8F N 5<B6 M668 <FB796F ME < 5<=?86E =<;;7<I6 <8F G;7B<>6 57;6;79? M<96F <8F N 5<B6 M668 <FB796F ME < 5<=?86E =<;;7<I6 <8F G;7B<>6 57;6

789:;<8=6 M;@?6; >5<> H@; < G6;9@8 :8F6; /2L >56 =@9> @H 57;6 <8F ;6C<;F789:;<8=6 M;@?6; >5<> H@; < G6;9@8 :8F6; /2L >56 =@9> @H 57;6 <8F ;6C<;F789:;<8=6 M;@?6; >5<> H@; < G6;9@8 :8F6; /2L >56 =@9> @H 57;6 <8F ;6C<;F789:;<8=6 M;@?6; >5<> H@; < G6;9@8 :8F6; /2L >56 =@9> @H 57;6 <8F ;6C<;F

789:;<8=6789:;<8=6789:;<8=6789:;<8=6 H@; < G6;9@8 :8F6; >56 <I6 @H /2L C56;6 7> =<8 M6 @M><786FL 79H@; < G6;9@8 :8F6; >56 <I6 @H /2L C56;6 7> =<8 M6 @M><786FL 79H@; < G6;9@8 :8F6; >56 <I6 @H /2L C56;6 7> =<8 M6 @M><786FL 79H@; < G6;9@8 :8F6; >56 <I6 @H /2L C56;6 7> =<8 M6 @M><786FL 79

G;@57M7>7B6AE 6OG6897B61 4579 =;6<>69 < 97I87H7=<8> M<;;76; >@ 68>;E1G;@57M7>7B6AE 6OG6897B61 4579 =;6<>69 < 97I87H7=<8> M<;;76; >@ 68>;E1G;@57M7>7B6AE 6OG6897B61 4579 =;6<>69 < 97I87H7=<8> M<;;76; >@ 68>;E1G;@57M7>7B6AE 6OG6897B61 4579 =;6<>69 < 97I87H7=<8> M<;;76; >@ 68>;E1

 

      Page 93    Agenda Item 7 

PQQRSTUV P

TPWXYZWT QWU[PXR \UWR TWU[RW] P]]Z^UPXUZS

456 H<=> 79 >5<> 78 >56 G<9> >56 _:>5456 H<=> 79 >5<> 78 >56 G<9> >56 _:>5456 H<=> 79 >5<> 78 >56 G<9> >56 _:>5456 H<=> 79 >5<> 78 >56 G<9> >56 _:>5@;7>E 5<9@;7>E 5<9@;7>E 5<9@;7>E 5<9 A7=6896FA7=6896FA7=6896FA7=6896F F;7B69 >5<> C6;6 :8F6;F;7B69 >5<> C6;6 :8F6;F;7B69 >5<> C6;6 :8F6;F;7B69 >5<> C6;6 :8F6;

>56 <I6 @H /2L <8F N M6A76B6 >5<> @86 A7=6896F ME JE G;6F6=699@; C<9 <8 2`>56 <I6 @H /2L <8F N M6A76B6 >5<> @86 A7=6896F ME JE G;6F6=699@; C<9 <8 2`>56 <I6 @H /2L <8F N M6A76B6 >5<> @86 A7=6896F ME JE G;6F6=699@; C<9 <8 2`>56 <I6 @H /2L <8F N M6A76B6 >5<> @86 A7=6896F ME JE G;6F6=699@; C<9 <8 2`

E6<; @AF H6J<A61 N A7=6896F 96B6;<A F;7B6;9 >5<> C6;6 :8F6; >56 <I6 @H /2 <8FE6<; @AF H6J<A61 N A7=6896F 96B6;<A F;7B6;9 >5<> C6;6 :8F6; >56 <I6 @H /2 <8FE6<; @AF H6J<A61 N A7=6896F 96B6;<A F;7B6;9 >5<> C6;6 :8F6; >56 <I6 @H /2 <8FE6<; @AF H6J<A61 N A7=6896F 96B6;<A F;7B6;9 >5<> C6;6 :8F6; >56 <I6 @H /2 <8F

8@ @Ma6=>7@8 C<9 ;<796F ME JE A786 J<8<I6;L >56 =:;;68> b<8<I8@ @Ma6=>7@8 C<9 ;<796F ME JE A786 J<8<I6;L >56 =:;;68> b<8<I8@ @Ma6=>7@8 C<9 ;<796F ME JE A786 J<8<I6;L >56 =:;;68> b<8<I8@ @Ma6=>7@8 C<9 ;<796F ME JE A786 J<8<I6;L >56 =:;;68> b<8<I6; c8H@;=6J68>6; c8H@;=6J68>6; c8H@;=6J68>6; c8H@;=6J68>

<8F d6I:A<>@;E e6;B7=69L <8F >56;6 C6;6 H6C 7H <8E G;@MA6J9 C7>5 <8E @H >5696<8F d6I:A<>@;E e6;B7=69L <8F >56;6 C6;6 H6C 7H <8E G;@MA6J9 C7>5 <8E @H >5696<8F d6I:A<>@;E e6;B7=69L <8F >56;6 C6;6 H6C 7H <8E G;@MA6J9 C7>5 <8E @H >5696<8F d6I:A<>@;E e6;B7=69L <8F >56;6 C6;6 H6C 7H <8E G;@MA6J9 C7>5 <8E @H >5696

F;7B6;9D 9@L C7>5@:> <8E 6B7F68=6 >@ >56 =@8>;<;EL >579 G@A7=E <GG6<;9 >@ M6F;7B6;9D 9@L C7>5@:> <8E 6B7F68=6 >@ >56 =@8>;<;EL >579 G@A7=E <GG6<;9 >@ M6F;7B6;9D 9@L C7>5@:> <8E 6B7F68=6 >@ >56 =@8>;<;EL >579 G@A7=E <GG6<;9 >@ M6F;7B6;9D 9@L C7>5@:> <8E 6B7F68=6 >@ >56 =@8>;<;EL >579 G@A7=E <GG6<;9 >@ M6

M<96F @8 G;6a:F7=61 f:;>56; >56;6 <GG6<;9 >@ 5<B6 M668 < A<=? @H ;696<;=5 <8FM<96F @8 G;6a:F7=61 f:;>56; >56;6 <GG6<;9 >@ 5<B6 M668 < A<=? @H ;696<;=5 <8FM<96F @8 G;6a:F7=61 f:;>56; >56;6 <GG6<;9 >@ 5<B6 M668 < A<=? @H ;696<;=5 <8FM<96F @8 G;6a:F7=61 f:;>56; >56;6 <GG6<;9 >@ 5<B6 M668 < A<=? @H ;696<;=5 <8F

< A<=? @< A<=? @< A<=? @< A<=? @H :8F6;9><8F78I @H 5@C >56 9><>79>7=9 <;6 :96F ME 789:;6;9 <9 < ;79?H :8F6;9><8F78I @H 5@C >56 9><>79>7=9 <;6 :96F ME 789:;6;9 <9 < ;79?H :8F6;9><8F78I @H 5@C >56 9><>79>7=9 <;6 :96F ME 789:;6;9 <9 < ;79?H :8F6;9><8F78I @H 5@C >56 9><>79>7=9 <;6 :96F ME 789:;6;9 <9 < ;79?

J<8<I6J68> >@@A >@ 96> G;6J7:J9 H@; >56 57I5 ;79? I;@:G9 >5<> ME G@978I <J<8<I6J68> >@@A >@ 96> G;6J7:J9 H@; >56 57I5 ;79? I;@:G9 >5<> ME G@978I <J<8<I6J68> >@@A >@ 96> G;6J7:J9 H@; >56 57I5 ;79? I;@:G9 >5<> ME G@978I <J<8<I6J68> >@@A >@ 96> G;6J7:J9 H@; >56 57I5 ;79? I;@:G9 >5<> ME G@978I <

97I87H7=<8> M<;;76; >@ 68>;E 78>@ >56 5<=?86E =<;;7<I6 <8F G;7B<>6 57;6 >;<F6997I87H7=<8> M<;;76; >@ 68>;E 78>@ >56 5<=?86E =<;;7<I6 <8F G;7B<>6 57;6 >;<F6997I87H7=<8> M<;;76; >@ 68>;E 78>@ >56 5<=?86E =<;;7<I6 <8F G;7B<>6 57;6 >;<F6997I87H7=<8> M<;;76; >@ 68>;E 78>@ >56 5<=?86E =<;;7<I6 <8F G;7B<>6 57;6 >;<F69

>5<> C7AA 68=@:;<I6 >5@96 78 >56 5>5<> C7AA 68=@:;<I6 >5@96 78 >56 5>5<> C7AA 68=@:;<I6 >5@96 78 >56 5>5<> C7AA 68=@:;<I6 >5@96 78 >56 57I5 ;79? I;@:G9 >@ F;7B6 =<;6H:AAE1 456;6H@;67I5 ;79? I;@:G9 >@ F;7B6 =<;6H:AAE1 456;6H@;67I5 ;79? I;@:G9 >@ F;7B6 =<;6H:AAE1 456;6H@;67I5 ;79? I;@:G9 >@ F;7B6 =<;6H:AAE1 456;6H@;6

>56 G@A7=E F@69 8@> 9><8F :G >@ 9=;:>78E1>56 G@A7=E F@69 8@> 9><8F :G >@ 9=;:>78E1>56 G@A7=E F@69 8@> 9><8F :G >@ 9=;:>78E1>56 G@A7=E F@69 8@> 9><8F :G >@ 9=;:>78E1

N8 >56 =:;;68> 6F7>7@8 @H >56 g6G<;>J68> H@; 4;<89G@;> G:MA7=<>7@8 h4<O7 <8FN8 >56 =:;;68> 6F7>7@8 @H >56 g6G<;>J68> H@; 4;<89G@;> G:MA7=<>7@8 h4<O7 <8FN8 >56 =:;;68> 6F7>7@8 @H >56 g6G<;>J68> H@; 4;<89G@;> G:MA7=<>7@8 h4<O7 <8FN8 >56 =:;;68> 6F7>7@8 @H >56 g6G<;>J68> H@; 4;<89G@;> G:MA7=<>7@8 h4<O7 <8F

i;7B<>6 K7;6 j657=A63 k69> i;<=>7=6 l:7F<8=6hL >56 96=>7@8 h_I6 m7J7>9hi;7B<>6 K7;6 j657=A63 k69> i;<=>7=6 l:7F<8=6hL >56 96=>7@8 h_I6 m7J7>9hi;7B<>6 K7;6 j657=A63 k69> i;<=>7=6 l:7F<8=6hL >56 96=>7@8 h_I6 m7J7>9hi;7B<>6 K7;6 j657=A63 k69> i;<=>7=6 l:7F<8=6hL >56 96=>7@8 h_I6 m7J7>9h

Agenda Item 5Page 37



Appendix A part II 

6 of 6 

 

nG<;<I;<G5 opq 9><>nG<;<I;<G5 opq 9><>nG<;<I;<G5 opq 9><>nG<;<I;<G5 opq 9><>693693693693

N> F@69 8@> 966J 86=699<;E >@ 96> < J<O7J:J <I6 A7J7> H@; F;7B6;9N> F@69 8@> 966J 86=699<;E >@ 96> < J<O7J:J <I6 A7J7> H@; F;7B6;9N> F@69 8@> 966J 86=699<;E >@ 96> < J<O7J:J <I6 A7J7> H@; F;7B6;9N> F@69 8@> 966J 86=699<;E >@ 96> < J<O7J:J <I6 A7J7> H@; F;7B6;9

G;@B7F6F >5<> ;6I:A<; J6F7=<A =56=?9 <;6 J<F61 r@; F@ J787J:J <I6G;@B7F6F >5<> ;6I:A<; J6F7=<A =56=?9 <;6 J<F61 r@; F@ J787J:J <I6G;@B7F6F >5<> ;6I:A<; J6F7=<A =56=?9 <;6 J<F61 r@; F@ J787J:J <I6G;@B7F6F >5<> ;6I:A<; J6F7=<A =56=?9 <;6 J<F61 r@; F@ J787J:J <I6

A7J7>9L M6E@8F >56 9><>:>@;E G6;7@F9 H@; 5@AF78I < H:AA F;7B6; A7=68=6LA7J7>9L M6E@8F >56 9><>:>@;E G6;7@F9 H@; 5@AF78I < H:AA F;7B6; A7=68=6LA7J7>9L M6E@8F >56 9><>:>@;E G6;7@F9 H@; 5@AF78I < H:AA F;7B6; A7=68=6LA7J7>9L M6E@8F >56 9><>:>@;E G6;7@F9 H@; 5@AF78I < H:AA F;7B6; A7=68=6L

966J <GG;@G;7<>61 _GGA7=<8>9 95@:AF M6 <996996F966J <GG;@G;7<>61 _GGA7=<8>9 95@:AF M6 <996996F966J <GG;@G;7<>61 _GGA7=<8>9 95@:AF M6 <996996F966J <GG;@G;7<>61 _GGA7=<8>9 95@:AF M6 <996996F @8 >567; J6;7>91@8 >567; J6;7>91@8 >567; J6;7>91@8 >567; J6;7>91

k<96F @8 >579 I:7F<8=6L >56 =@8>78:<8=6 @H >56 G@A7=E @H ;6H:978I >@ A7=68=6k<96F @8 >579 I:7F<8=6L >56 =@8>78:<8=6 @H >56 G@A7=E @H ;6H:978I >@ A7=68=6k<96F @8 >579 I:7F<8=6L >56 =@8>78:<8=6 @H >56 G@A7=E @H ;6H:978I >@ A7=68=6k<96F @8 >579 I:7F<8=6L >56 =@8>78:<8=6 @H >56 G@A7=E @H ;6H:978I >@ A7=68=6

9@J6@86 :8F6; >56 <I6 @H /2 <GG6<;9 F79=;7J78<>@;E <8F N C@:AF >56;6H@;69@J6@86 :8F6; >56 <I6 @H /2 <GG6<;9 F79=;7J78<>@;E <8F N C@:AF >56;6H@;69@J6@86 :8F6; >56 <I6 @H /2 <GG6<;9 F79=;7J78<>@;E <8F N C@:AF >56;6H@;69@J6@86 :8F6; >56 <I6 @H /2 <GG6<;9 F79=;7J78<>@;E <8F N C@:AF >56;6H@;6

;6=@JJ68F >5<> >56 <FB7=6 I7B68 78 >56 k69> i;<=>7=6 l:7F<8=6 79 <F@G>6F1;6=@JJ68F >5<> >56 <FB7=6 I7B68 78 >56 k69> i;<=>7=6 l:7F<8=6 79 <F@G>6F1;6=@JJ68F >5<> >56 <FB7=6 I7B68 78 >56 k69> i;<=>7=6 l:7F<8=6 79 <F@G>6F1;6=@JJ68F >5<> >56 <FB7=6 I7B68 78 >56 k69> i;<=>7=6 l:7F<8=6 79 <F@G>6F1 

Agenda Item 5 Page 38



Appendix A part III 

1 of 16 

 

 

DARTFORD PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS ASSOCIATION COMMENTS IN RESPONSE TO THE 

CONSULTATION ON CHANGES TO THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING 

POLICY AS PROPOSED AT THE LICENSING COMMITTEE HELD ON 25 MARCH 

 

At Appendix A is a copy of the invitation I received to comment on behalf of the Dartford 

Private Hire Drivers Association (DPHDA) on the implications of changes to the Hackney 

Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy as proposed at the Licensing Committee held on 

25 March 2014.  These are: 

 

Current Requirement Proposed Requirement 

12 months DVLA/EU licence 36 months DVLA/EU licence 

Minimum age 21 Minimum age 21 

DSA Test DSA Test 

English Test (or acceptable 

documentation) 

English Test (or acceptable 

documentation) 

 

Item 1:  Increase the period of time for which a DVLA/EU driving licence must be held 

before an application for a HV/PH driver licence will be accepted from 12 to 36 months 

I note that at the Licensing Committee Meeting held on 16 July 2013 this matter was raised 

in relation to those holding an EU driving licence.  The minutes of that meeting record: 

 

The Chairman advised that Councillor Bardoe advocated a policy of 3 years 

for non EU/EEC drivers to have held a UK or EU/EEC licence, prior to them 

making a private hire driver’s licence application. 

 

Members expressed some concern that a time limit might unfairly discriminate 

against competent older drivers, rather than targeting the influx of younger 

drivers that were causing licensing authorities increasing concern. In 

response to specific questions, Officers confirmed that a 3 year EU/EEC 

licence requirement would have to be imposed across all age groups and 

nationalities, not just non EU/EEC nationals. Members were advised that the 

current minimum age of 21 years for applicants to apply for a trade licence 

appeared to be working well and that the DSA did not impose any time limits 

on licence holders (EU/EEC or non EU/EEC) before they were able to sit the 

DSA test. 

 

Members agreed the proposal that non EU/EEC licence holders must have 

held a full UK or EU/EEC Member States’ licence for at least 12 months 

preceding an application for a new hackney carriage or private hire driver’s 

licence, and to retain the present minimum age limit of 21 years for all 

applicants, irrespective of nationality. 

 

Having had his proposal rejected I observed that it was Cllr Bardoe that raised the current 

proposal at the 25 March 2014 Licensing Committee Meeting, the unconfirmed minutes of 

which record: 

 

Agenda Item 5Page 39



Appendix A part III 

2 of 16 

 

 

Some Members expressed concern that holding a standard GB licence for only 12 

months prior to applying for a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Vehicle licence was 

insufficient. They noted in this respect that other Kent licensing authorities and the 

Metropolitan authority, required drivers to have a minimum of 36 months driving 

experience before applying for a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Vehicle licence and 

proposed that the Council also adopt a 36 month minimum criteria and review the 

minimum age requirement of 21 years [paragraph 24.1.1 of the draft Policy (agenda 

pages 149/50)]. 

In his comments on this subject in response to the consultation, Nick Morris of All Night Cars 

has, in his own case, clearly shown that age and the period of time for which one has held a 

driving licence is no guide to driving ability.  Having passed his driving test at 17 he drove 

86,000 miles in his first year and at 18 was driving a minicab in Bexleyheath.  He makes a 

valid comparison with someone 10 years older than himself that took their driving test at 

the same time but only drove 5000 miles a year.  He goes on to show how after 3 years, it 

would be the less experienced driver that would be in a position to make an application for 

a HC/PH driver licence.  Finally he draws attention to the number of young drivers there are 

on the road.  I can vouch for the number of 6th form pupils that drive to school as I live close 

to two secondary schools and during the day a considerable number pupils park their cars 

along the road in which I live and the three roads off of it. 

 

Nick Morris makes the point that the cost of insuring those under the age of 25 is a 

significant barrier to entry.  He also points out that his insurance broker has advised him 

that many insurance companies require drivers to have held a full licence for 3 years and 

that some companies are wary of insuring drivers that are unused to driving 50,000 – 60,000 

miles a year. 

 

I have also pointed out on a number of occasions that insuring those under the age of 25 is a 

significant barrier to entry into the trade, the most recent being my comments on the 

minimum age requirement in response to the Public Consultation on the Policy approved by 

the Licensing Committee at the meeting held on 25 March 2014.  A copy is at Annex A. 

 

Mr Morris has made a sound business case not increasing the period for holding a full driver 

licence beyond the statutory period of 12 months. 

 

Now let us examine the claim in the unconfirmed minutes of 25 March 2014 Licensing 

Committee Meeting that states: 

 

"They noted in this respect that other Kent licensing authorities and the 

Metropolitan authority, required drivers to have a minimum of 36 months driving 

experience before applying for a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Vehicle licence" 

 

Having attended the meeting as a member of the public, I can attest that the minute gives 

an accurate account of what was said. 

 

Note the use of the plural in the claim in the minutes that "other Kent Licensing Authorities"   

required drivers to have a minimum of 36 months driving experience.  This implies a 

significant number of them have it as a requirement, 

Agenda Item 5 Page 40



Appendix A part III 

3 of 16 

 

 

 

Table 1 gives the results of a survey I carried out of the period of time the Metropolitan 

(Transport for London) and Kent Licensing Authorities  required a driver to have held a 

driving licence before an application for a HC/PH driver licence would be accepted. 

 

Please note, that with the exception of Medway, Swale and TfL, where the information was 

obtained by email, all the other Authorities published it on their websites.   

 

Licensing Authority HC Driver PH Driver 

Canterbury 3years 3years 

Dover 1 year 1 year 

Gravesham 1 year 1 year 

Maidstone* 1 year 1 year 

Medway 1 year 1 year 

Sevenoaks* 1 year 1 year 

Shepway 1 year 1 year 

Swale 1 year 1 year 

Thanet 1 year 1 year 

Tonbridge & Malling 1 year 1year 

Tunbridge Wells* 1 year 1 year 

Transport for London (TfL) 3 years 3 years 

Table 1: Periods specified by Kent licensing authorities and transport for London for which a 

full driving licence must be held before an application can be made for a hackney carriage or 

private hire drivers' licence 

 

*Maidstone, Sevenoaks and Tunbridge Wells have a common policy 

Information valid as at 19 May 2014 

 

It is clear that whilst TfL require both HC and PH drivers to have held a full driving licence for 

3 years; only one out of the thirteen Kent Licensing Authorities does.  This does not support 

the claim made in the minutes that that "other Kent licensing authorities" required drivers 

to have a minimum of 36 months driving experience".  There can be no excuse for this 

misrepresentation.  It is a clear breach of the Member Code of Conduct as set out in Part 5 

of the 1 May 2014 edition of the Councils Constitution and if employees had been involved, 

a breach of Part 6. 

 

The Licensing Committee's argument is not supported by the facts. 

 

With regard to the impact on business; the Licensing Section provided information on the 

number of HC and PH licenses held as at 31 March for the years 2008 - 2013 and 

information on the knowledge test results for April 2011 - April 2014 inclusive.  The latter 

information also gave details of those passing the knowledge that had held a driving licence 

for less than 3 years.  My analysis of this information is provided in Table 1 of Tables 1 - 6 of 

Appendix B. 

 

Agenda Item 5Page 41



Appendix A part III 

4 of 16 

 

 

Table 2 shows the annual change in the numbers of licensed hackney carriages and private 

hire vehicles. It shows that over the period 31 March 2008 - 31 March 2013 there has been a 

reduction of 33 (28%) in the number of licensed hackney carriages whilst licensed private 

hire vehicles have reduced by 14 (10%). 

 

Table 3 shows the annual change in the numbers of licensed drivers over the same period.  

It can be seen that the reduction in the numbers of hackney carriage, private hire and dual 

licensed drivers is 21 (22%), 14 (10%) and 16 (25%) respectively. 

 

Table 4 shows that the ratio of drivers to vehicles has stayed fairly constant, the average 

being 1.2 drivers per vehicle over the period considered. 

 

Table 5 shows the overall effect on the total numbers of licensed vehicles and drivers firstly 

based on the numbers licensed as at 31 March 2008 and secondly on the peak numbers.  In 

both cases the results for licensed vehicles is the same with a total reduction of 18%.  For 

drivers the reductions are 17% and 16%.  The close correlation of these figures gives a clear 

indication of an overall decline in the Trade in Dartford. 

 

Table 6 provides information on knowledge test passes and identifies the numbers that 

have passed the knowledge tests and the numbers of that have held a driving licence for 

less than 3 years.    During the period April 2011 - April 2014, there have been 44 private 

hire passes and 5 hackney; of these, the number of passes by applicants that had held a 

driving licence for less than 3 years was: Private Hire 11 (25%); Hackney Carriage 1 (20%).  

Although the time spans and timeframes are different, comparing the number of knowledge 

test passes over the period April 2011 - April 2014 with the reduction in the number of 

licensed drivers over the period 31 March 2008 - 31 March 2013 will give an indication of 

how the total of PH and HC drivers entering the trades compare with the numbers leaving.  

The respective figures are 49 entering and 51 leaving.  Adjusting the figures for the 

difference in time scales by using the average number of passes per year and the average 

number of losses per year would give 98 entering and 61 leaving.  Thus we would have 

expected to see growth.  However, the number of licenses shows that this is not the case 

and if the two sets of data are accurate, it must mean that a significant number of those 

that pass the knowledge test are not entering the Trade. 

 

The sections of the Trade that are likely to support the raising of this barrier to entry are the 

drivers.  They see the queues of waiting customers getting longer.  They fail to realise that 

customers will not wait forever and if the service they require cannot be provide customers 

will desert them and this will cause a further decline in the Trade and put the public at risk 

of being carried by unlicensed drivers.  It also has to be remembered that the dwindling  

numbers may have an impact on the Licensing Authorities costs as well as the Trade's. 

 

Conclusion 

The broad conclusions that can be drawn from the analysis the data supplied that over the 

period 31 March 2008 - 31 March 2013: 

 

1. The fact that only one out of the thirteen Kent Licensing Authorities requires 

applicants to have held a drivers licence for 3 years before accepting an application 

Agenda Item 5 Page 42



Appendix A part III 

5 of 16 

 

 

for a HC/PH licence does not support the Licensing Committees' claim which implies 

that, within the County, the policy is widespread. 

2. Despite the knowledge test data indicating that there should have been an increase 

in the driver to vehicle ratio; there has been a steady decrease in the numbers of 

licensed drivers with the number of drivers per vehicle averaging 1.2.  The only 

conclusion that can be drawn from this is that many of those that pass the test do 

not go on to be a licensed driver. 

3. The most significant reductions have been in the numbers of hackney carriages and 

hackney carriage drivers at 28% and 22% respectively.  However, the drop in the 

number for dual licensed drivers that normally drove hackney carriages means that 

the overall loss of hackney carriage drivers will be greater that 22%. 

4. The impact of the reduction in hackney carriages means that there will be fewer 

wheelchair accessible vehicles (WAV) available to serve those that require them. 

5. From the business point of view, a significant proportion of those passing the 

knowledge tests have held a full driving licence for less than 3 years.  The loss of 

these numbers to the Trade will mean a further decline.  This could put public safety 

will be put at risk because of an increase in the number of unlicensed drivers and 

operators. 

6. The insurance companies, though their restrictions and on age and experience and 

the high insurance premiums for those under the age of 25, create a very high 

barrier to entry that virtually excludes anyone under that age from entering the 

trade.  Therefore, there appears to be no need for the Licensing Authority to deviate 

from the statutory requirement  of 12 months  as laid down in S51(1b) and S59(1b) 

of the Local Government (Miscellaneous) Provisions Act 1976. 

 

Recommendation 

Retain the current requirement that a full driving licence must have been held for a 

minimum of 12 months before an application for a HC/PH Driver Licence will be accepted. 

 

 

 

Item 2:  Retention of the requirement that a person must be 21 years of age before they 

can apply for a hackney carriage/private hire driver licence. 

In making the case to retain the requirement that a person must have held a full driving 

licence for 1 year before they can apply for a HC/PH driver licence I have referred to the 

case made in Appendix B. 

 

The fact is that in the past Dartford Borough Council, to my knowledge, has licensed 3 or 4 

drivers under the age of 21 and there is no evidence to show that they caused significant 

problems.  The data provided by the Licensing Section shows the Trade is in decline and as it 

is now harder than ever to get insurance for such drivers, there is little point in legislating 

against it.  If somebody under the age of 21 really wants to do the job and they manage to 

get insurance, that person is likely to make a good driver and the Licensing Authority should 

take a leaf out of Ashford's policy and not be discouraging such people. 

 

Agenda Item 5Page 43



Appendix A part III 

6 of 16 

 

 

If you need a role model for a licensed driver under the age of 21, then look no further than 

the proprietor of the largest private hire operator in the Borough.  He started off his career 

as an 18 year old private hire driver in Bexleyheath. 

Conclusion 

In the past the Council has licensed drivers under the age of 21 without there being any 

problems.  The numbers of those granted a licence that were under the age of 21 has been 

minimal and the vast majority of insurance companies will no longer licence them. 

The 'Taxi and Private Hire Best Practice Guidance' does not consider a restriction necessary. 

There is no hard evidence to show that abolishing the age 21 restriction would be 

detrimental to the Trade or public or personal safety. 

 

Recommendation 

The current requirement should be replaced by the statutory requirements that require a 

full driving licence to have been held for a minimum of 12 months before an application for 

a HC/PH Driver Licence will be accepted. 

 

 

 

Item 3a:  Before an application for a hackney carriage/private hire driver licence can be 

submitted by a first time applicant, the DSA test must be passed. 

The stated aim is to achieve "a common standard of driving for all drivers, regardless of 

where and when they passed their test."  My research shows that Dartford, like 9 of the 

other Licensing Authorities in Kent that have introduced the test, only intend to make it a 

prerequisite for first time applicants. 

 

Table 2 shows the results of my survey of the thirteen Kent Licensing Authorities and TfL in 

relation to this matter. 

 

Licensing Authority DSA Test Who 

Dartford  Propose to introduce First time applicants 

Ashford  Yes Applicants under 21 

Canterbury No n/a 

Dover Yes or approved alternative All new drivers 

Gravesham Yes All new drivers + special 

cases 

Maidstone Yes or Transport Training 

Test 

New drivers 

Medway DSA Yes New drivers 

Sevenoaks  Yes or Transport Training 

Test 

New drivers 

Shepway No n/a 

Swale Yes New drivers 

Thanet No n/a 

Tonbridge & Malling Yes or KCC Test New drivers 

Tunbridge Wells Yes or Transport Training 

Test 

New drivers 

Agenda Item 5 Page 44



Appendix A part III 

7 of 16 

 

 

Transport for London Yes Hackney carriage driver 

Table 2: Licensing authorities that have DSA test prerequisite 

 

It is clear that the majority of the Kent Licensing Authorities have the DSA test as a 

prerequisite.  However, there are some interesting variations.  Ashford limits the 

requirement to applicants under the age of 21; Dover, Maidstone, Sevenoaks, Tonbridge 

and Malling and Tunbridge Wells accept alternatives and TfL only require hackney carriage 

drivers to take the test. 

 

Drivers have made me aware that the disability awareness training course recently arranged 

by the Licensing Authority turned out to be a BTEC rather than a 1 day course.  The BTEC 

includes an on the job driving and customer care assessment.  If the BTEC is to become the 

norm for providing disability awareness training, there would appear to be no need to make 

a driver take the DVLA test. 

 

The DSA test is another barrier to entry and trying to determine its impact on the Trade is 

difficult.  The only authoritative information I can find on this matter is contained in this 

extract from the Court cases:  Darlington Borough Council V Malcolm Kaye on 07/12/1012 – 

Case No CO/47462004:  

 

“The Driving Standards Agency taxi driver test progress report”. That showed the 

results of the taxi driver test from November 2002 through to March 2004. The 

figures showed, for each quarter, a pass rate ranging from 41% to 59%. This report 

updated the information which had been presented to the council. In particular it 

records that in 2003 to 2004 there were forty five local authorities using the DSA 

driver test and seven thousand drivers were tested with a pass rate of 50%. It goes 

on to say the DSA have indicated that the pass rate for taxi drivers could be 

significantly improved by drivers better preparing for the test. 

 

With the apparent reduction in the number of licensed vehicles and drivers when the 

Borough is growing, introducing the DSA test at this stage is only likely to make matters 

worse. 

 

The perceived benefit is that it should improve driving standards but is there any real 

evidence of this.  One way is to look at the impact of speed awareness courses may be 

offered to those that have committed a speeding as an alternative to points on their licence.  

The report "Evaluation of the National Speed Awareness Course" which was commissioned 

by the Association of Chief Police Officers for England, Wales and Northern Ireland National 

Driver Offender Retraining Scheme and the Association of National Driver Improvement 

Service Providers, dated 9 July 2011. 

(http://www.roadsafe.com/pool/files/SpeedAwarenessResearch%5B1%5D.pdf), looks at the 

impact that the course has had on those that have taken it. The Executive Summary gives 

the following information: 

 

2070 clients were sent a follow up questionnaire. 

31% of clients responded. 

Agenda Item 5Page 45



Appendix A part III 

8 of 16 

 

 

99% of those that responded said that they had changed their driving after attending 

the course, notably driving more slowly, being more aware of the road environment 

and of their speed, and feeling less stressed while driving. 

 

The report gives a positive spin but the fact is that 69% did not respond, so the impact on 

the majority is not known. 

 

The other thing to note is that those attending the course all had something to gain; i.e. 

they would not have their licence suspended.  There was a tangible reward at the end of it 

irrespective of whether or not it improved their driving through better speed awareness. 

 

Now consider the total number of licensed drivers which as at March 2013 was 194 and 

compare this with the total number of 49 knowledge test passes over the 3 year period April 

11 - April 14.  If the numbers entering the Trade was equal to the numbers leaving it, it 

would be nearly 12 years before every licensed driver had passed the DSA test and it would 

take several years of careful monitoring before any conclusions could be drawn on whether 

driving standards had improved. 

 

Conclusions 

Whilst the DSA Test is in use in 10 Kent Licensing Authorities, information provided by the 

Licensing Section suggests that the hackney carriage and private hire trades in Dartford are 

in decline despite growth within the Borough.  Based on the 50% pass rate for the DSA test, 

the impact on the trade is that it will continue to decline and the service provided to the 

public will decrease.  This will also impact on the amount of revenue the Council collects in 

licence fees and this in turn could cause fees to rise and discourage those considering 

entering the Trade from licensing in Dartford.  This could then have an impact on public 

safety because of the potential for a rise in unlicensed drivers and increase the Authorities 

cost due an increase in the level of enforcement required, 

 

The question of acceptable alternative qualifications needs to be addressed. 

 

Noble as the proposal may be, the report of impact on drivers that took a speed awareness 

course shows that only 31% responded to the follow-up questionnaire with 99% of those 

responses being positive.  Whilst this is encouraging, the fact that 69% failed to respond 

suggests that a large proportion were unlikely to change.  Hence the lasting benefit of the 

DSA test would be minimal.  Also, it would take several years of careful monitoring to 

determine whether or not driving standards had improved. 

 

The cost associated with the DSA test and the fact that the London Borough of Bexley is on 

Dartford's western boundary means that those wanting to become a private hire driver are 

more likely to become licensed by TfL than Dartford.  This works against PH operators that 

are trying to grow their businesses, HC and PH drivers and the public that use their services. 

 

The perceived benefits of making the DSA test a prerequisite for licensing is likely to be 

outweighed by the adverse impact the Trade and the public.  Further, the long term benefits 

are uncertain. 

 

Agenda Item 5 Page 46



Appendix A part III 

9 of 16 

 

 

Recommendation 

An assessment needs to be made of the state of the Trade and accurate records kept over 

the next three years to facilitate that.  After the assessment has been made the proposal to 

introduce the DSA test should be reconsidered. 

 

 

Item 3b:  Where complaints of bad driving are received, the licensing authority may as a 

form of enforcement may require the driver to undertake the DSA test as an alternative to 

the issue of penalty points. 

DVLA already has penalty points scheme that deals with certain types of motoring offences 

including poor driving.   When penalty points are awarded the evidence for doing so is 

generally very sound.  Requiring a driver to take a DSA test because of complaints of poor 

driving or the number of penalty points accumulated on their DVLA licence would, in certain 

cases amount to double jeopardy. 

 

The lack of guidance for the award of penalty points was made in my response to the public 

consultation on the Draft Licensing Policy, but they were dismissed.  Yet again we have a 

situation where the Policy contains guidelines on how to treat criminal convictions but it 

contains no such guidelines for the award of penalty points or the circumstances that would 

justify requiring a licensed driver to take the DSA test.  My concern is that complaints of 

poor driving are not hard evidence and they can often be malicious. 

 

This matter cannot be dealt with in the same way as penalty points as a cost is involved and 

therefore the driver will have to be given the right to appeal to a magistrates' court. 

 

Conclusion 

Making a driver take a DSA test for accruing a certain number of penalty points on their 

licence would be double jeopardy.  Further, the Policy contains no guidance on how this 

proposal will be managed.  Within the Policy there is a penalty points scheme for dealing 

with breaches of licence conditions.  By adding this scheme drivers will not know where they 

stand and that is unacceptable. 

 

Recommendation 

With no details of how this proposal will be managed and no proper guidelines for its 

application, it is unacceptable.  If the DSA test is to be introduced it should be used only as a 

prerequisite to licensing; not as a punishment for a breach of licence conditions. 

 

 

 

Item 4: Proposal:  English Test (or acceptable documentation) 

There are no details of what of oral competency is required.  The Policy refers the reader to 

the information pack on the Councils website which was Issue 4/2013 on 3 June 2014.  This 

gave the following information:   

 

You will also need to demonstrate that you have a good command of spoken English 

by undertaking a verbal comprehension test with the Vehicle Licensing Officer prior 

to your application being accepted to sit the Knowledge Test. 

Agenda Item 5Page 47



Appendix A part III 

10 of 16 

 

 

 

There is no mention here of what I assume to be a formal, certificated, oral test or who the 

provider will be and the associate cost, or details of acceptable documentation. 

 

As frequently happens, officers have made a statement but have failed to produce a 

proposal.   

 

Where is the case for change?  With what do officers propose to replace the current method 

of assessment and how will it be administered?  What will it cost the applicant?  Will the 

new form of assessment result in a savings that can be passed on to the applicant by 

reducing fees, e.g. reducing the cost of the knowledge test?  All this work should have been 

done before the requirement ever went in to the Policy. 

 

The Trade cannot be expected to comment on the implications of a proposal that does not 

exist. 

 

All that can be said is that if it increases the applicants costs then those considering entering 

the trade will be put off and look to get licensed somewhere else. 

 

Conclusion 

Officers have made a statement but have failed to: 

 

• provide a case for change; 

• define the standard of oral competency required; 

• identify the alternatives and providers for what will replace the current method of 

assessment and the costs to both the Authority and the candidate. 

 

Recommendation 

Retain the current assessment. 

Agenda Item 5 Page 48



Appendix A part III 

11 of 16 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

 

Agenda Item 5Page 49



Appendix A part III 

12 of 16 

 

 

 

Appendix B 

 

DPHDA COMMENT THE ON THE DRIVERS MINIMUM AGE PROVIDED IN RESPONSE TO THE 

PUBLIC CONSULTATION ON THE DRAFT HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING 

POLICY 

 

24.1.1: The insurance statistics take a holistic view; they do not deal specifically with 

hackney carriage and private hire drivers and therefore do not provide an accurate 

assessment. However, insurance premiums are risk based and I have been advised by a 

hackney carriage and private hire insurance broker that for a person under 21, the cost of 

hire and reward insurance for a person under the age of 21, where it can be obtained, is 

prohibitively expensive. This creates a significant barrier to entry. 

 

The fact is that in the past the Authority has licensed drives that were under the age of 21, 

and I believe that one licensed by my predecessor was an 18 year old female. I licensed 

several drivers that were under the age of 21 and no objection was raised by my line 

manager, the current Manager Enforcement and Regulatory Services, and there were few if 

any problems with any of these drivers; so, without any evidence to the contrary, this policy 

appears to be based on prejudice. Further there appears to have been a lack of research and 

a lack of understanding of how the statistics are used by insurers as a risk management tool 

to set premiums for the high risk groups that by posing a significant barrier to entry into the 

hackney carriage and private hire trades that will encourage those in the high risk groups to 

drive carefully. Therefore the policy does not stand up to scrutiny. 

 

In the current edition of the Department for Transport publication ‘Taxi and Private Hire 

Vehicle: Best Practice Guidance’, the section ‘Age Limits’ (paragraph 69) states: 

 

It does not seem necessary to set a maximum age limit for drivers 

provided that regular medical checks are made. Nor do minimum age 

limits, beyond the statutory periods for holding a full driver licence, 

seem appropriate. Applicants should be assessed on their merits. 

 

Based on this guidance, the continuance of the policy of refusing to licence someone under 

the age of 21 appears discriminatory and I would therefore recommend that the advice 

given in the Best Practice Guidance is adopted. 

 

 

Agenda Item 5 Page 50



Appendix A part III 

13 of 16 

 

 

 

Appendix B 

 

 

Hackney 

Carriage 

Vehicle 

Private 

Hire 

Vehicle 

Hackney 

Carriage 

Driver 

Private 

Hire 

Driver 

Dual 

Driver 

Private 

Hire 

Operator 

Licensed as 

at 31.03.13 
87 128 76 126 49 19 

Licensed as 

at 31.03.12 
95 132 78 123 51 19 

Licensed as 

at 31.03.11 
97 122 83 124 52 19 

Licensed as 

at 31.03.10 
103 129 94 132 55 17 

Licensed as 

at 31.03.09 
119 125 103 134 70 22 

Licensed as 

at 31.03.08 
120 142 97 140 65 18 

Table 1: Number of Licences under the TCPA 1847 & LGMPA 1976 

Source: Dartford Borough Council Licensing Section 

 

 

 

Hackney 

Carriage 

Vehicle 

Hackney 

Carriage 

Vehicle 

Change/Year 

Private Hire 

Vehicle 

Private Hire 

Vehicle 

Change/Year 

Licensed as at 

31.03.13 
87 -8 128 -4 

Licensed as at 

31.03.12 
95 -2 132 10 

Licensed as at 

31.03.11 
97 -6 122 -7 

Licensed as at 

31.03.10 
103 -16 129 4 

Licensed as at 

31.03.09 
119 -1 125 -17 

Licensed as at 

31.03.08 
120   142   

Baseline 

31.03.08 
  -33.00   -14 

Loss   -28%   -10% 

Agenda Item 5Page 51



Appendix A part III 

14 of 16 

 

 

Table 2:  Analysis of the annual change of the numbers of licensed hackney 

carriages and private hire vehicles 

 

 

Hackney 

Carriage 

Driver 

Hackney 

Carriage 

Driver 

Change/Year 

Private Hire 

Driver 

Private Hire 

Driver 

Change/Year 

Dual Driver 
Dual Driver 

Change/Year 

Licensed as 

at 31.03.13 
76 -2 126 3 49 -2 

Licensed as 

at 31.03.12 
78 -5 123 -1 51 -1 

Licensed as 

at 31.03.11 
83 -11 124 -8 52 -3 

Licensed as 

at 31.03.10 
94 -9 132 -2 55 -15 

Licensed as 

at 31.03.09 
103 6 134 -6 70 5 

Licensed as 

at 31.03.08 
97   140   65   

Baseline 

31.03.08 
  -21   -14   -16 

Loss   -22%   -10%   -25% 

Average 

Loss per 

year 

  -4.2   -2.8   -3.2 

Table 3:  Analysis of the annual changes in the numbers of licensed hackney carriage, private hire 

and dual licensed drivers 

 

Agenda Item 5 Page 52



Appendix A part III 

15 of 16 

 

 

 

  

Hackney 

Carriage 

Vehicles 

Private 

Hire 

Vehicles 

Total 

Vehicles 

Hackney 

Carriage 

Driver 

Private 

Hire 

Driver 

Dual 

Driver 

Total 

Drivers 

Ratio 

Drivers:Vehicles 

Licensed 

as at 

31.03.13 

87 128 215 76 126 49 251 1.2 

Licensed 

as at 

31.03.12 

95 132 227 78 123 51 252 1.1 

Licensed 

as at 

31.03.11 

97 122 219 83 124 52 259 1.2 

Licensed 

as at 

31.03.10 

103 129 232 94 132 55 281 1.2 

Licensed 

as at 

31.03.09 

119 125 244 103 134 70 307 1.3 

Licensed 

as at 

31.03.08 

120 142 262 97 140 65 302 1.2 

              Average 1.2 

Table 4:  Analysis of the annual changes in the ratio of the total number of licensed drivers to the 

total number of licensed vehicles 

 

 

Hackney 

Carriage + 

Private 

Hire 

Vehicles 

Hackney Carriage 

+ 

Private Hire 

+ 

Dual licensed Drivers 

Total Loss at 

31.03.13 
-47 -51 

Licensed as 

at 31.03.08 
262 302 

Total Loss -18% -17% 

Peak Number 

Licensed 
262 313 

Total Loss -18% -16% 

Table 5:  Analysis of the overall impact on the 

total numbers of licensed vehicles and drivers 

Agenda Item 5Page 53



Appendix A part III 

16 of 16 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5 Page 54



Appendix A part III 

17 of 16 

 

 

 

Date of 

Test 

Number of 

Applicants 

Number of 

Applicants who have 

held driving licence 

for less than 3 yrs. 

Number of Passes 

Passes who have 

held driving 

licence for less 

than 3 yrs. 

  

Private 

Hire 

Hackney 

Carriage 

Private 

Hire 

Hackney 

Carriage 

Private 

Hire 

Hackney 

Carriage 

Private 

Hire 

Hackney 

Carriage 

Apr-11 13 6 

INFORMATION NOT 

HELD 2 0 0 0 

Jul-11 19 4 

INFORMATION NOT 

HELD 6 0 1 0 

Oct-11 17 7 

INFORMATION NOT 

HELD 3 2 2 1 

Jan-12 18 5 

INFORMATION NOT 

HELD 4 1 0 0 

Apr-12 19 2 

INFORMATION NOT 

HELD 5 0 0 0 

Jul-12 18 6 

INFORMATION NOT 

HELD 1 0 0 0 

Oct-12 19 4 

INFORMATION NOT 

HELD 4 0 2 0 

Apr-13 14 5 

INFORMATION NOT 

HELD 1 0 0 0 

Jul-13 15 6 5 1 4 1 2 0 

Oct-13 16 7 7 0 1 0 1 0 

Jan-14 19 3 4 0 8 1 1 0 

Apr-14 10 2 3 0 5 0 2 0 

 The hackney carriage knowledge test is in two parts each part being taken on a separate occasion.  

Under the ' Number of Applicants' heading the figures represent individual tests whereas those 

under the ' Number of Passes' heading represent those that have passed both parts. 

ANALYSIS 

 

Number of 

Applicants 

Number of 

Applicants who have 

held driving licence 

for less than 3 yrs. 

Number of Passes 

Passes who have 

held driving 

licence for less 

than 3 yrs. 

 

Private 

Hire 

Hackney 

Carriage 

Private 

Hire 

Hackney 

Carriage 

Private 

Hire 

Hackney 

Carriage 

Private 

Hire 

Hackney 

Carriage 

Totals 197 57 19 1 44 5 11 1 

Percentage of Knowledge Test passes - driving licence held for less than 3 yrs    25% 20% 

Total number of knowledge Test passes (Private Hire + Hackney Carriage) = 49 

Average number of knowledge Test passes (Private Hire + Hackney Carriage) = 16.3 

Table 6: Analysis of Knowledge Test results - drivers that had held a driving licence for less than 3 

years.  Source data provided by DBC Licensing Section 

 

Agenda Item 5Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



KENT AND TFL APPLICANT CRITERIA

Statistics

PH HC PH HC PH HC No. %

Dartford 12 months 12 months Yes Yes 21 21 5 38

Gravesend 12 months 12 months Yes Yes 21 21 12 92

Swale 12 months 12 months Yes Yes 21 21 11 85

Shepway 12 months 12 months No No 21 21

Thanet 12 months 12 months No No 21 21

Canterbury* 24 months 24 months Yes Yes 19 19

Tonbridge and Malling 12 months 12 months Yes Yes 18 18

Tunbridge Wells 12 months 12 months Yes Yes 18 18

Maidstone 12 months 12 months Yes Yes 18 18

Ashford 12 months 12 months Yes Yes 18 18

Sevenoaks 12 months 12 months Yes Yes 18 18

Dover 12 months 12 months Yes Yes 18 18

Medway 12 months 12 months Yes Yes 18 18

TFL 36 months 12 months No Yes 21 18

* Canterbury are introducing DSA and 24 months as part of this years policy review. 

Kent Authorites with DSA Test

Length Licence Held DSA TEST Age 

Kent Authorites with 12 months

Kent Authorites with 21 

A
genda Item

 5
P

age 57



P
age 58

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5Page 59



Agenda Item 5 Page 60



Agenda Item 5Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of Minutes of the meeting held on 24 March 2014
	5 Review of Minimum 21 Years of Age Criteria and Extension of the 12 Months Driving Licence Requirement to 36 Months - Consultation Response
	Revised AppendixA - Consultation responses
	Appendix A part II
	Appendix A part III
	Appendix B - Licensing Authoritys Survey Analysis
	Appendix C - Email dated 17 June 2014 from the DPHDAs representative


